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DESCRIBE THE PRESENT AND ORIGINAL (IF KNOWN) PHYSICAL APPEARANCE

The Agnew Mansion, located on Memorial Parkway east of the downtown
area of New Brunswick, is one of two surviving examples of Greek Revival
residences in the city.

Constructed in a classic Greek Revival mode, the house is rectangu-
lar in plan with a projecting pedimented tetrastyle Doric portico across
the full width of the main (north) facade. The main block is three bays
wide, three bays deep, and two stories high. The roof is broadly gabled,
as befits the style, with the gable end toward the street.

Windows on the first floor of the main facade are 6/6 and are
flanked by 2/2 sidelights, separated from the central window by heavy
mullions. A full entablature controls the entire window unit. Knee-high
second floor windows are 3/3 and are devoid of ornament.

The walls are finished in stucco, resulting in planar, two-dimen-
sional surfaces in imitation of Greek antecedents. The entry, in the
center of the main facade, is the focal point of the facade. It is
taller than its flanking windows and contains 3/4-length sidelights and a
finely leaded rectangular transom. The transom bar is ornamented in a
Greek key motif and the door itself is 8-panelled. Surmounting this
assemblage is a full entablature, plain except for a dentil course at the
top of the architrave.

The portico is the most distinctive feature of the house. Fluted
columns with entasis support a full entablature that repeats the de-
tailing seen over the door: plain elements broken only by a row of
dentils above the architrave. Where the portico meets the house it rests
on unfluted pilasters; the architrave and frieze terminate at this point
but the cornice continues around the house. The pediment is infilled
with a broad expanse of flush boards. The portico covers a full width
porch without railings which is reached by a flight of seven wooden
steps.

Boundary Justification

The house stands on a lot on the edge of a housing development that
extends southerly to Clifton Avenue. Outbuildings clearly associated
with the property during its use as a farm have survived, either on the
nominated property or on intrusional adjoining properties. For con-
venience, the current lot lines of the Agnew House property are used in
this nomination.
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The "Agnew mansion”, as this house is known, is a fine example, rare
in New Jersey, of a house in the Greek Revival temple form. Although
the names of the builder and/or architect are unknown, its design and
handling of details suggest a practiced hand, either on site or through a
pattern book. In 1835, Thomas I. Agnew, a farmer, bought, for $750., a
2-acre lot of land situated (until 1860) within North Brunswick Township,
on the southwesterly side of thﬁ "New Road to Cool Spring" (Memorial
Parkway, formerly Burnet Street): In 1844, he mortgaged this small lot
for $6,000, and this mortgage, together with the high Grecian style of
the present house, strongly suggest 1844 as a plausible construction date
for it. Agnew, however, became a California "Forty-Niner," and died in
San Francisco in 1851, after which his son and administrator, Andrew
Agnew, inherited the property.2 This 2-acre lot on which the house stands
was called lot #7; it was one of seven similar, adjoining 2-acre lots on
the southerly side of the road. Thomas also owned lots 2,3, and 4, and
these seem to have descended to Andrew as well. The title history is
somewhat confused, however, by the fact that another Andrew Agnew,
perhaps Thomas' brother, owned lots 5 and 6, between Thomas' holdings,
and a 7-acre lot behind them. The latter Andrew died during the 1860's,
and in 1871 the surviving Andrew Thomas, thereby assembled a 19-acre
tract of land with the house standing near the easterly corner. Andrew
died in 1888, whereupon the house descended to his nephew Agnew RandolphJ3
Randolpz.held the property until 1899, and it was sold out of the family
in 1903.

1. Middlesex County Deeds, Lib. 39, p. 558ff

2. ‘New Jersey State Library, Middlesex County Wills, 12751L; also
Deeds, Lib. 76, pp. 307ff.

3. Deeds, Lib. 311, pp. 585ff.

4, Ibid., Lib. 344, pp. 580ff.
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